
            
 Onondaga County Legislature 

  
         
 JAMIE McNAMARA DAVID H. KNAPP MELANIE VILARDI 
        Clerk Chairman Deputy Clerk 
 

401 Montgomery Street • Court House • Room 407 • Syracuse, New York  13202 
Phone: 315.435.2070 • Fax: 315.435.8434 • www.ongov.net/legislature    

 *VIRTUAL SESSION 
              RESOLUTIONS NOS. 24-32 
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Listed below are the resolutions presented to the County Legislature at the March Session.  The meeting 
was held at 1:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 2, 2021.   
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
B. CALLING OF ROLL MEMBERS 
C. INVOCATION – Mr. Kinne 
D. READING OF MINUTES 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
F. PRESENTATION OF COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Correspondence: 
a.  2-1-21 Letter from Chairman Knapp recommending appointments of Ms. Crumbie and Mr. Scammell to 

the Onondaga County Justice Center Oversight Committee  
b. 2-12-21 Letter from County Executive McMahon reappoint Mr. Peter Seitz to serve as Independent 

Director of the Onondaga Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation 
c.  2-17-21  Letter from Chairman Knapp recommending appointment of Legislator James Rowley to the 

Onondaga County Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation 
d.  2-26-21  Letter from County Executive McMahon appointing Dr. Cody Kelly as Legislator for the 14th 

District effective February 26, 2021 through December 31, 2021 
2.    Public Comment:  Due to the current circumstances, written statements will be accepted via email to 

jamiemcnamara@ongov.net or via USPS mail to the above address.  Statements will be accepted 
through 12:00 p.m. on March 2, 2021 and will become part of the permanent record 

 G. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 H. REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 
 I. CALL OF RESPECTIVE LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS (District No. 15)  
 
  

 3rd DISTRICT – MR. BURTIS – WAYS AND MEANS 
1.  NO. 24 Confirming the Re-Appointment of the Independent Director and Appointment of a 

Director to the Onondaga Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation (Peter Seitz, James J. 
Rowley) (17-0) 

 
2. NO. 25 Approving and Directing the Correction of Certain Errors on Tax Bills (17-0) 

 
3. NO. 26 Authorizing the Transfer of Tax Delinquent Property to the State of New York (17-0) 

 
4. NO. 27 Standard Work Day (17-0) 

 
 
 4TH DISTRICT – MRS. TASSONE – ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

5. NO. 28 Authorizing the Execution of an Order on Consent with the New York State 
Department of Environmental Conservation Relative to the Settlement of the Amended 
Consent Judgment (17-0) 

 

 

http://www.ongov.net/legislature


 10TH DISTRICT – MR. HOLMQUIST 
6. NO. 29 Amending the 2021 County Budget to Make Funding Available for use in Connection 

with a Grant from the United States Department of Justice Bureau of Justice Statistics, and 
Authorizing the Execution of Agreements (17-0) 

 
  12TH DISTRICT – CHAIRMAN KNAPP 

7. NO. 30 Confirming Appointments to the Onondaga County Justice Center Oversight 
Committee (Kerry-Ann Crumbie, Gregory Scammell) (17-0) 

 
8. NO. 31 WAIVER Confirming appointment of Deborah A. Kaminski as Assistant Clerk of the 

Onondaga County Legislature (17-0) 
 
  13TH DISTRICT – MR. BUSH 

9. NO. 32 WAIVER Memorializing Resolution Opposing the Removal of the Canton Street 
Bridge, Town of Van Buren, over the New York State Thruway (17-0) 

 
J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
K. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIR 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
 JAMIE McNAMARA, Clerk 
 ONONDAGA COUNTY LEGISLATURE 



MARCH 2, 2021 

SESSION 
ROLL CALL 

LEGISLATOR PRESENT: ABSENT: 
 

 1. MAY    
Chairman Knapp called the 

meeting to order at 1:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 2. ROWLEY   

 3. BURTIS   

 4. TASSONE   

 5. CODY   

 6. ABBOTT-KENAN   

 7. KUHN   

 8. RYAN   

 9. CHASE   

 10. HOLMQUIST   

 11. McBRIDE   

 13. BUSH   

 14. KELLY   

 15. KINNE   

 16. WILLIAMS   

 17. ERVIN   

 12. KNAPP   

  TOTAL: 17 0 
 2021 SESSION ROLL CALL 
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February 1, 2021 
 
 
 
TO:  Chris Ryan, Chair  
  Public Safety Committee Members 
 
FROM: David H. Knapp, Chairman 
 
RE: Appointments to Onondaga County Justice Center Oversight Committee 
 
 
Submitted for your consideration are the appointments of Kerry-Ann Crumbie and 
Gregory Scammell to the Onondaga County Justice Center Oversight Committee.   
 
Ms. Crumbie and Mr. Scammell’s resumes are attached for your review.  These 
appointments require confirmation by the full Legislature at the March 2, 2021 Session. 
 
 
APPOINTMENTS:     TERM EXPIRES: 
Kerry-Ann Crumbie     December 31, 2022 
4750 Woodard Way 
Liverpool, New York 13088 
 
 
Gregory Scammell     December 31, 2023     
2398 Markland Road 
LaFayette, New York 13084 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: Jamie McNamara, Clerk 
 All Legislators 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

Kerry-Ann Crumbie 
4750 Woodard Way • Liverpool, NY 13088 • 917.583.2448 • kerry-ann.r.crumbie@lmco.com 

 
WORK EXPERIENCE:  
 BLQ10 Hardware/Firmware Engineering LDP                                                                                                October 2019 – Present  
 TLS Hardware Engineering LDP                                                                                                                        August 2019 – Present  
 TPS-59 Firmware/Integration & Test Engineering LDP Associate                                                    July 2018 – July 2019 

o Primarily responsible for the design and coding (VHDL and C) development of the CAT (Control and Timing) module for the radar 
system. 

o Responsible for verifying CAT firmware design through build, simulation and synthesize using QuestaSim, Vivado and SDK 
software tools – loading the firmware on a 3rd party vendor evaluation board. 

o Responsible for firmware and software integration effort for the CAT module. 
o Responsible for developing and executing informal test cases that verify all functional requirements allocated to the CAT 

module. 
o Responsible for leading the Design Verification Test (DVT) Plan and procedure development effort for the CAT Firmware. 
 

 TPQ-53 Integration & Test Engineering LDP Associate      September 2017 – June 2018 
o Responsible for supporting Integration & Test efforts under the T02 and Singapore contracts.  
o Performed installation and regression testing of software builds in the engineering lab and on ground-based tactical radar systems. 
o Responsible for developing and performing PR (problem report) verification tests for two (2) software baselines. 
o Responsible for developing a test procedure and result documentation template for installing/checking out hardware boards. 
o Responsible for updating test documentation based on the latest software baseline and tactical system configuration. 
o Supported System Acceptance Test (SATs) dry runs in preparation for customer demonstrations (software qualification tests). 
o Supported hardware integration efforts (on Syracuse campus and Caz site), verifying radar system hardware functionality (e.g. 

power on testing). 
 

 BLQ10 Integration and Test Engineer Associate                                                                                     May 2017 – September 2017 
o Primarily responsible for leading significant integration effort in developing procedure to improve the disk build and boat 

delivery process, supporting 4 hardware systems, 4 boat classes and 11 software baselines. 
o Responsible for performing Hardware checkout procedure dry runs for multiple boat platforms. 
o Responsible for verifying SW builds on multiple tactical systems in a lab environment, prior to informal/formal customer 

software deliveries. 
 

 AOEW Systems Engineer Associate                                                                                                              February 2017 – May 2017 
o New program development with highly aggressive schedule. 
o Working in an agile environment. 
o Responsible for creating 19 activity diagrams, state transition diagrams and sequence diagrams using IBM Rational Rhapsody 

software for 10 use cases. 
o Responsible for writing CSCI SRSs using IBM Rational DOORS database for 6 use cases. 
o Responsible for updating/maintaining non-TPM budget spreadsheets (timing requirement allocation) for 3 use cases. 

 
 ARP Integration and Test Engineer Associate                                                                                  November 2016 – February 2017 

o Requested an opportunity to gain experience outside of EW to expand familiarity with the variety of Syracuse programs. Worked 
ARP and BLQ10 simultaneously.   

o Responsible for writing I&T procedure, describing how to successfully run a parser (using raw input data files, runtime area setup 
files/scripts and runtime scripts) that creates the desired parsed output to be used with existing ARP application. 

 
 BLQ10 Systems Engineer / Integration and Test Engineer Associate                                                 January 2016 – February 2017  

o Interfaced with customers under the NUWC ISEA contract, as I&T representative on a weekly basis; assisting in answering 
questions and solving software integration issues presented by the customer. 

o Assumed responsibility as point of contact for software deliveries to/from NUWC. 
o Responsible for writing install script used to ‘grab’ all of the necessary files/run scripts within software deliveries to NUWC (tar file 

as a medium for delivery) and place them in the appropriate runtime directories located on their classified system(s). 
o Responsible for updating baselined disk build procedure to support IA patch Install on BLQ10 systems. 
o Supported Nessus/SCAP Scanning of the 793 system, post IA patching task. Responsible for writing Nessus Scan and IA patching 

procedures. 
o Primary operator for 2 Field Change Kit (FCK) Hardware checkout tests (VA SSN788/789 CLIN 500AA/AB FCK and LA SSN754 

CLIN 601 FCK). 
o Responsible for writing/updating 5 IRSs (PEPI3, LPI, ICADF, CEESIM Interfaces and AN/BLQ10 External Interfaces with 

Submarine Warfare Tactical System (SWFTS)) and a training materials document (training requirements for the On-Board Trainer 
function (OBT) on the AN/BLQ-10A(V)1). 



 

 

o Responsible for writing CSCI Test procedures to verify LPI/ICADF Interfaces and TSM CSCI requirements.  
o Responsible for writing/updating SRS requirements for OBT Standalone Training, PEPI3, LPI and ICADF Interfaces. 
o Supported the updates and reviews (coordinating ETRs) of 4 CIDS documents (CLIN 0501 for SSN772, CLIN 0601 SSN 754, 

CLIN 0602 SSN/761 0603 762 and CLIN 0604 SSN 765). 
o Supported Integration and Test effort at the NUWC site, working with NUWC/SEACORP engineers to integrate LM software into 

their systems. 
 
LOCKHEED MARTIN PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COURSES: 
 Key Communication Skills                October 2018 
 Career Management                                   August 2018 
 Project Management Essentials For Unofficial Project Managers                                                                                        July 2017 
 Managing Conflict On Teams                                                                                                                                                    July 2017 
 Leading Without Authority                                                                                                                                                       June 2017 
 Precision Thinking & Problem-Solving                                                                                                                                    June 2017   
 Effective Teamwork Strategies                                                                                                                                                  June 2017 
 Listening Skills                       June 2017 
 Strategic Business Writing                      June 2017 
 Dynamic Decision-Making                                                                                                                                                         May 2017 
 Professional Presentation Skills                                                                                                                                                May 2017 
 Financial Intelligence: Understanding cash flow and other impacts to the bottom line                                                    April 2017 
 Systems Engineering Principles and Practices (SEPP) Training                                                                                          June 2016 
 
LEADERSHIP/COMMUNITY SERVICE/VOLUNTEER INVOLVEMENT:        
 Technology Alliance of Central New York (TACNY) – Board Member                                                               July 2019 – present  
 LM Diversity & Inclusion Council – Council Member                                                                                      January 2019 – present  
 ELDP Lifecycle Project Junior Mentoring – Team Junior Mentor                                                              November 2018 – present   

o Responsible for mentoring one of eight teams from the proposal phase through the final live demo at the end of the project. 
o Assists the team in successfully completing the project, by reviewing milestone deliverables, attending weekly team meetings, 

answering questions and providing general advice/guidance.                                                                                  
 ELDP Volunteer Outreach Ambassador – Lead Coordinator                                                                      November 2018 – present   
 Syracuse Habitat for Humanity – LM volunteer              October 2018 – present                                                 
 LM Hispanic Organization Leadership & Awareness – Communications Rep            August 2017 – present 

o Involved in the coordination of events that reinforce diversity as an integral part of Lockheed Martin culture. 
o Responsible for creating and ensuring the distribution of communications pertaining to event announcements via TV screens, mass 

emails, posters and flyers. 
 LM Engineering Day – Lead Coordinator                                                                                                                            March 2019  

o Led a team of 5, to organize a day of hands-on engineering activities, Lockheed site tours, speed mentoring and job fair sessions for 
80+ high school students. 

 LM Explorer Post – Great American Engineering Challenge Lead Coordinator                   March – May 2019 
o Organized weekly hands-on engineering projects/activities, for a group of 15+ high school students to learn about various 

engineering disciplines. 
 4-H Robotics at the State Fair – LM Judge                                                                                                                   September 2017 
 Faith Heritage School’s Annual Career Day – LM Representative and Presenter                                                            March 2017                                                        
 Girls Inc. of Central New York (This Girl Can, TGC)  – LM STEM Volunteer                                           March 2016 – May 2018 

o Assisted in leading STEM projects, focused on the importance of collaborative learning, creativity, problem solving, supporting each 
other’s ideas and innovative thinking. 

 Annual LM Women In Engineering Event –  LM Volunteer                                                                 October 2016 – October 2018 
o Supported an educator forum session; informed teachers, counselors and parents about various ways in which they can encourage 

young girls to enter the engineering field. 
o Supported a speed mentoring session; answered various questions pertaining to work opportunities at Lockheed and the typical work 

day for engineers; recommended colleges and relevant course work. 
o Assisted in judging student projects in a creative problem-solving session that focused on the engineering design process. 

 VEX IQ Robotics Competition – LM Judge                                                                                                                          April 2016                                 
 Let’s Get Ready – College Transition Coach                                                                                                           June – August 2015 
 
EDUCATION:  B.S. in Electrical Engineering Technology with a minor in Business Administration from Rochester Institute of Technology, 
May 2016                                                                 
             



Resume of 

Greg Scammell 

Born and raised in Central New York (LaFayette), travelled to 4 continents, all 4 hemispheres, North 

American seaboard/coastline. 

Former town supervisor, town of LaFayette (30 years service) 

Former software designer and developer at leading CNY companies. (30 years service) 

MBA - Syracuse University; BA, Computer Science - SUNY Potsdam; AAS, Data Processing - SUNY Alfred. 

Former adjunct instructor, Onondaga Community College, Introduction to Computers. (5 years) 

Vietnam veteran, 4th Infantry Division, Sergeant – reconnaissance patrol leader, radio section chief, 

communications platoon sergeant, CBR (Chemical-Biological-Radiological warfare) NCO, training NCO, 

safety NCO.   Secret security clearance w/CRYPTO.  Honorable discharge. 

Prior service as English as a Second Language tutor for Amerasian refugees, (via ProLiteracy -formerly 

Literacy Volunteers of America), substitute teacher and teaching assistant (NYS certified, K-12) at CNY 

schools.  

Prior board member of Onondaga County Mental Health Association and Cornell Cooperative Extension 

(Onondaga), numerous community committees.  

National Grid Volunteer of the Year, local high school Class Marshal. 

Current service – visitor advocate, Jail Ministry; volunteer at Clear Path Veterans Center; reading tutor at 

Meachem Elementary School (via OASIS); assistant cubmaster - Cub Scout Troop 100; US flag 

distribution – LaFayette Memorial Day.  

“I look forward to continuing to serve the public, especially the inmates in the Justice Center.  Through 

Jail Ministry, I have a good understanding of the population.  I’ve visited the pods weekly (pre-Covid); 

made phone calls and written letters to their families, lawyers and friends; reconnected them to their 

families and have been supportive in many other ways.  I’ve also visited inmates in solitary confinement 

and 5-C.”  

  

 



 

 

 

 

February 12, 2021 
 
TO THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE ONONDAGA COUNTY LEGISLATURE: 
 
Pursuant to Local Law No. 8-2001, I hereby reappoint the following individual to serve as the 
Independent Director of the Onondaga Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation. 
 
APPOINTMENT:    
Mr. Peter Seitz    
126 Cedar Heights Drive 
Jamesville, New York 13078 
 
The Independent Director shall serve for a one year term or until the next annual meeting of the 
Corporation, if such meeting occurs one year or more after commencement of the Independent 
Director’s then current term, and in any event until the Independent Director’s successor has been 
duly appointed and qualified. 
 
Your confirmation of this appointment would be greatly appreciated. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
J. Ryan McMahon, II 
County Executive 
 

 







OTASC – Seitz, Rowley    yv    dak  2.16.2021 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation 
duly adopted by the County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd 
day of March 2021. 

 
Clerk, County Legislature 
 

March 2, 2021 
 
Motion Made By Mr. Burtis RESOLUTION NO. 24 
 
 

CONFIRMING THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR AND 
APPOINTMENT OF A DIRECTOR TO THE ONONDAGA TOBACCO ASSET SECURITIZATION 

CORPORATION 
 
 WHEREAS, by Local Law No. 8-2001, this Onondaga County Legislature provided for the sale of 
the County’s rights to receive payments expected to become due under the Master Settlement Agreement, 
related Consent Decree and Final Judgment with various tobacco companies, and authorized the County to 
sell those rights to a local development corporation (“Onondaga Tobacco Asset Securitization 
Corporation”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said local law provides for a five-member Board of Directors to manage said 
corporation, with two Directors to be appointed by the Onondaga County Executive, two Directors to be 
appointed by the County Legislature, and one Independent Director to be appointed by the County 
Executive, subject to confirmation by the County Legislature; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to that local law, it is the desire of this Legislature to confirm the County 
Executive’s re-appointment of the Independent Director and the County Legislature’s appointment of a 
Director to the Onondaga Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation; now, therefore be it 
 
 RESOLVED, that the County Legislature hereby confirms the re-appointment and appointment of 
the following persons to serve as the Independent Director and Director of the Onondaga Tobacco Asset 
Securitization Corporation: 
 
RE-APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: 
Peter Seitz 
126 Cedar Heights Drive 
Jamesville, New York 13078 
 
APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR: 
James J. Rowley 
4255 Mayfair Circle 
Liverpool, New York 13090 
 
and, be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that each Director shall serve for a one year term or until the next annual meeting of 
the Corporation, if such meeting occurs one year or more after commencement of the Director’s then current 
term, and in any event until their successors have been duly appointed and qualified or as otherwise 
determined by the Board of Directors pursuant to the by-laws of said corporation. 

 
 

ADOPTED 3/2/2021 
 
 
 
 



MARCH 2, 2021 

SESSION 
1 

LEGISLATOR AYES: NOES: ABSENT:  

 1. MAY     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 17. ERVIN    

 14. KELLY    

 15. KINNE    

 16. WILLIAMS    

 2. ROWLEY    

 3. BURTIS    

 4. TASSONE    

 5. CODY    

 6. ABBOTT-KENAN    

 7. KUHN    

 8. RYAN    

 9. CHASE    

 10. HOLMQUIST    

 11. McBRIDE    

 13. BUSH    

 12. KNAPP    

  TOTAL: 17 0  
 2021 SESSION VOTE TALLY 



March 2, 2021 
 
Motion Made By Mr. Burtis RESOLUTION NO. 25 
 
 

APPROVING AND DIRECTING THE CORRECTION OF CERTAIN ERRORS ON TAX BILLS 
 
 WHEREAS, the following named property owner has filed an application with the County Director 
of Real Property Tax Services for the correction of errors on the tax roll relative to their premises for tax 
year 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Director of Real Property Tax Services, acting as agent of this Legislature, 
which is the tax levying body of this County, has investigated the circumstances of the claimed errors and 
has submitted his recommendation that the applications for the corrections be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 554 of the Real Property Tax Law prescribes the procedure for correction of 
clerical errors, errors in essential fact, and certain unlawful entries on tax rolls; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 556 of the Real Property Tax Law prescribes the manner in which refunds 
shall be charged back to appropriate municipality; now, therefore be it 
 
 RESOLVED, that the report of the County Director of Real Property Tax Services be and the same 
hereby is accepted; and, be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Chairman of this Legislature be and he hereby is authorized and directed to 
mail a notice of approval to each applicant and order the collecting officers of the appropriate Towns or the 
Commissioner of Finance, as the case may be, to correct the respective taxes as follows: 
 
NAME AND ADDRESS AMOUNT OF 
 OF APPLICANT: TAX MAP NUMBER: TAX BILLED: CORRECTED TAX: 
 
MANLIUS 
Colonial Village LLP 073.-02-18.1/1 $61,744.33 $16,565.44 
6737 Myers Road 
East Syracuse, NY  13057 
 
Colonial Village LLP  073.-02-18.1 $18,307.94 $1,838.66 
6737 Myers Road 
East Syracuse, NY  13057 
 
CLAY 
James Donegan 020.-01-05.4 $10,187.17 $277.43 
PO Box 669 
Alexandria Bay, NY  13607 
 
James Donegan 020.-01-05.4 $9,232.48 $275.95 
PO Box 669 
Alexandria Bay, NY  13607 
 
 
 
 



COR001-21    DW/MBT    yv 1.28.21    dak 1.28.2021 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation duly adopted 
by the County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd day of March 2021. 

 
Clerk, County Legislature 
 

NAME AND ADDRESS AMOUNT OF 
 OF APPLICANT: TAX MAP NUMBER: TAX BILLED: CORRECTED TAX: 
 
Nelson Associates 020.-01-06.1 $36,474.61 $18,064.32 
188 Grant Avenue 
Auburn, NY  13021 
 
Nelson Associates  020.-01-06.1 $37,757.43 $21,118.00 
188 Grant Avenue 
Auburn, NY  13021 
 
Widewaters Farrell Road 020.-01-05.1 $21,421.03 $6,056.39 
Co. LLC 
5786 Widewaters Parkway 
Dewitt, NY  13214 
 
Widewaters Farrell Road 020.-01-05.2 $3,459.88 $542.84 
Co. LLC 
5786 Widewaters Parkway 
Dewitt, NY  13214 
 
Widewaters Farrell Road 020.-01-05.1 $31,609.85 $6,013.89 
Co. LLC 
5786 Widewaters Parkway 
Dewitt, NY  13214 
 
DEWITT 
Darren Dibiase 075.-07-19.0 $2,538.18 $0 
6705 Harmony Drive 
Fayetteville, NY  13066 
 
Water Environmental Protection Various $35,386.07 $6,985.72 
 
 
ADOPTED 3/2/2021 
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 14. KELLY    

 15. KINNE    

 16. WILLIAMS    

 2. ROWLEY    
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  TOTAL: 17 0  
 2021 SESSION VOTE TALLY 



Green Lakes XTR – Oot Parcel    YV    dak  1.25.2020 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation duly adopted 
by the County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd day of March 2021. 

 
Clerk, County Legislature 
 

March 2, 2021 
 
Motion Made By Mr. Burtis RESOLUTION NO. 26 
 
 

AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF TAX DELINQUENT PROPERTY TO THE STATE OF NEW 
YORK 

 
 WHEREAS, Onondaga County is the owner and holder of the tax sale certificate(s) on a tax 
delinquent parcel identified as Lot No. 079.-01-09.0 and located at the intersection of Green Lakes Road 
and Route 290 in the Town of Manlius; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of New York has expressed a desire and need for said property for state park 
purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the interests of the County and of the wider public are served by this transfer in 
furtherance of state park development and greater public outdoor recreational opportunities and amenities, 
and it is the desire of this Legislature to authorize the transfer of said property to the State of New York; 
now, therefore be it 
 
 RESOLVED, that, contingent upon both parties having reached mutually agreeable terms and 
conditions for such transfer, for a consideration of $1, waived, the County Executive and the Onondaga 
County Chief Fiscal Officer are authorized to execute deeds to acquire the above mentioned property by 
tax deed, to transfer said property to the State of New York, and to discharge any and all unpaid interest 
and penalties thereon, and it is further resolved that the County Executive is authorized to execute 
agreements to further the intent of this Resolution. 
 
 
ADOPTED 3/2/2021 
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SWD – March 2021 Redacted    yv    dak  2.16.2021 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation duly adopted 
by the County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd day of March 2021. 

 

   

 

March 2, 2021 
 
Motion Made By Mr. Burtis RESOLUTION NO. 27 
 
 

STANDARD WORK DAY AND REPORTING RESOLUTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Onondaga hereby establishes the following as standard work days for 
elected and appointed officials and will report the following days worked to the New York State and Local 
Employees’ Retirement System based on the record of activities maintained and submitted by these officials 
to the Clerk of this Legislature: 
 

L Name F Name MI Title 
*Term 

Begins/Ends 

Standard 
Work 
Day 

(hrs/day) 

Days/Month 
(based on 
Record of 
Activities) 

Tier 
1 

No record of 
activities 

completed 
APPOINTED         

Vilardi Melanie L Deputy Clerk Jan. 1, 2020 - 
Dec. 31, 2021 7 22  

 
 
 RESOLVED, that, pursuant to the requirements of 2 NYCRR 315.4, the Clerk of this Legislature 
is hereby directed to cause a copy of this resolution to be publicly posted for at least 30 days after adoption 
and, thereafter, to transmit this resolution and a supporting affidavit of posting to be filed with the New 
York State Office of the Comptroller within 15 days after the 30 day public posting period ends. 
 
*Reflects the term of the Elected or Appointed Official making the appointment 
 
 
ADOPTED 3/2/2021 
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March 2, 2021 
 
Motion Made By Mrs. Tassone RESOLUTION NO. 28 
 
 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN ORDER ON CONSENT WITH THE NEW YORK STATE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION RELATIVE TO THE SETTLEMENT OF 

THE AMENDED CONSENT JUDGMENT 
 
 WHEREAS, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC), Atlantic 
States Legal Foundation, Inc. (ASLF), and the County entered into a federal Amended Consent Judgment 
(ACJ), effective January 20, 1998 and subsequently modified in December 2006, April 2008 and November 
2009, concerning the County’s combined sewer overflow (CSO) abatement program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has invested over $700 million pursuant to the ACJ and has fulfilled all 
construction milestones and attained all CSO capture goals set forth in the ACJ, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due to CSOs and other non-County sources, water quality issues related to pathogens 
in certain Onondaga Lake tributaries during and immediately after wet weather events, as well as during 
dry weather periods, remain; and 
 
 WHEREAS, given the timely completion of ACJ milestones and capture goals as well as the water 
quality improvements realized to date, ASLF and the DEC support terminating the ACJ provided the 
County enters into a state consent order with the DEC to address remaining water quality issues in such 
tributaries by means of an approvable use attainability analysis (UAA) and long-term control plan (LTCP) 
consistent with the United States Environmental Protection Agency’s 1994 Combined Sewer Overflow 
(CSO) Control Policy and related guidance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County submitted its latest proposed LTCP to DEC on October 11, 2019 and 
entered into a memorandum of understanding with DEC concerning the UAA process on October 15, 2020; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County and DEC seek to enter into an Order on Consent to settle this matter, a 
copy of which Order on Consent is on file with the Clerk of this Legislature; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon entry of an order or decree in federal court terminating the ACJ and dismissing 
or discontinuing the underlying action, the Order on Consent would become effective and require the 
County to, amongst other things: pay the DEC a penalty of $1,000.00; provide DEC with a list of CSO 
abatement projects the County will construct, implement and/or fund over the five-year duration of the 
Order; submit an approvable post-construction compliance monitoring plan and annual CSO metering 
program; provide annual reports to DEC; submit a CSO disinfection report; and obtain DEC approval of a 
LTCP to address CSOs and a UAA supportive of water quality standard revisions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the County to enter into said proposed Order on Consent; 
now, therefore be it 
 
 RESOLVED, that the County Attorney is authorized to settle said action for the sum of $1,000.00, 
and that the Comptroller be and hereby is authorized to draw his warrant, charging it against the proper 
funds; and, be it further 
 



Post-ACJ    BMY    dak  1.28.2021 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation duly adopted 
by the County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd day of March 2021. 

 
Clerk, County Legislature 
 

 RESOLVED, that the Onondaga County Executive hereby is authorized to execute said Order on 
Consent on file with the Clerk of this Legislature resolving this matter, and to execute such further 
documents to implement the terms of the Order on Consent and to carry out the intent of this resolution. 
 
 
ADOPTED 3/2/2021 
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STATE OF NEW YORK 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION 

x 

In the Matter of the Violations of Articles 17 of the Environmental 

Conservation Law and Part 750 et seq., of Title 6 of the Official ORDER ON 

Compilation of Codes, Rules and Regulations of the State of CONSENT 

New York (6 NYCRR); 

-by-

County of Onondaga, New York 

Respondent. 

x 

Jurisdiction 

1. The Department of Environmental Conservation (“Department” or “DEC”) is a Department

of the State of New York with jurisdiction to enforce the environmental laws of the State,

pursuant to the Environmental Conservation Law (“ECL”), Title 6 of the Official

Compilation of the Codes, Rules and Regulations of the State of New York (“NYCRR”), and

Orders issued thereunder.

2. The Department has jurisdiction over the abatement and prevention of pollution to the waters

of the State pursuant to Article 17 of the ECL and 6 NYCRR Part 750, et seq. This

jurisdiction also authorizes DEC, as a State agency with an approved program per §§ 318,

402 and 405 of the federal Clean Water Act (“CWA”), 33 U.S.C. §1251, et seq., to regulate

the discharge of pollutants from point sources into the waters of the State in conformity with

the CWA.

3. The County of Onondaga (“Respondent” or “Onondaga”) is a municipal corporation

organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York with municipal offices

located in the City of Syracuse, Onondaga County, New York. Respondent is a “person” as

defined in ECL § 17-0105(1) and in 6 NYCRR 750-1.2(66).

Law, Regulation and Guidance Applicable to CSO Long Term Control Plans 

4. Pursuant to its authority to protect the waters of the State, the Department administers the

State Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“SPDES”) permit program, ECL §17-0801, et

seq. In general, the SPDES program prohibits any discharge of pollutants to the waters of the

State without a permit establishing pollutant limitations and treatment requirements. Thus,

SPDES permits set certain effluent limitation parameters (“parameters”), determined

according to ECL §17-0809 and 6 NYCRR §750-1.11, in order to avoid contravention of

mandated water pollution control requirements and water quality standards (“WQS”). Those

conditions address not only the allowable range of parameters for discharge of pollutants to

the waters of the State, but also the manner in which the permittee is to operate, maintain,

monitor, and report on its regulated facilities and activities.



5. Combined sewer overflows (“CSOs”) are wet weather discharges from a Combined Sewer

System (“CSS”) of untreated domestic sewage, and industrial wastewaters, combined with

stormwater and/or snow melt, at a point prior to reaching the Waste Water Treatment Plant

(“WWTP”). CSOs are point sources subject to SPDES permit requirements including both

technology-based and water quality-based requirements of the CWA, ECL Article 17, and 6

NYCRR Parts 703 and 750.

6. On April 19, 1994, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) officially noticed the

Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Control Policy, 59 Fed. Reg. 18688 (“CSO Control

Policy”), to establish a consistent national approach for controlling discharges from all CSOs

to the waters of the United States. The CSO Control Policy provides guidance to national and

state permittees and permitting authorities on the implementation of the CWA with regard to

CSOs, including its “nine minimum controls” and the development and implementation of

Long Term Control Plans (“LTCPs”), which include measures to comply with the CWA

including attainment of WQS.

7. To help permittees, SPDES permitting and water quality authorities implement the provisions

of the CSO Control Policy, EPA issued several guidance documents including, without

limitation: Combined Sewer Overflows—Guidance for Long-Term Control Plan (EPA

1995a), Combined Sewer Overflows—Guidance for Screening and Ranking (EPA, 1995c),

Combined Sewer Overflows—Guidance for Monitoring and Modeling (EPA, 1995d),

Combined Sewer Overflows—Guidance for Financial Capability Assessment (EPA, 1995e),

Combined Sewer Overflows—Guidance for Permit Writers (EPA 1995g), Combined Sewer

Overflows— Guidance for Monitoring and Modeling (USEPA 832-B-99-002 (January

1999)), Guidance: Coordinating CSO Long-Term Planning with Water Quality Standards

Reviews (EPA-833-R-01-002 (July 31, 2001)), and CSO Post Construction Compliance

Monitoring Guidance (USEPA 833-K-11-001 (May 2012)).

8. On December 15, 2000, amendments to §402 the CWA (known as the Wet Weather Water

Quality Act of 2000) were enacted. These amendments require that all permits or orders for

CSO discharges, issued pursuant to the CWA after December 21, 2000, conform to the CSO

Control Policy. Pursuant to 33 U.S.C. §1342(q)(1) [CWA §402(q)(1)],

[e]ach permit, order, or decree issued pursuant to this chapter after December 21, 2000,

for a discharge from a municipal combined storm and sanitary sewer shall conform to

the Combined Sewer Overflow Control Policy signed by the Administrator on April 11,

1994 (in this subsection referred to as the ‘CSO control policy’).

9. ECL § 17-0815(7) authorizes the Department to include in SPDES permits any provisions

necessary to meet the requirements of the federal CWA. This includes the CSO requirements

contained at § 402(q)(1) of the federal CWA. Section 402(q)(1) of the CWA  and ECL § 17-

0807(4) provide that SPDES permits or orders for CSOs require an LTCP to address CSOs.

SPDES Permit and Federal Consent Decree 

10. Onondaga owns the Metropolitan Syracuse Wastewater Treatment Plant (“Facility”) located



at 650 Hiawatha Boulevard West, Syracuse, Onondaga County, New York and applied for a 

SPDES Discharge permit for the Facility. The Department issued the current SPDES 

Discharge Permit NY0027081, effective date July 1, 2017, expiration date June 30, 2022 

(“Permit”). The Permit and its predecessors allow discharges from designated outfalls into 

Onondaga Lake, a class C water. In addition, the Permit lists numerous CSO outfalls into the 

following waters: Harbor Brook, Onondaga Creek, Teall Brook and Ley Creek, all class B or 

class C waters. 

11. Atlantic States Legal Foundation, Inc. (“ASLF”) is a not for profit corporation of the State of

New York with offices at 658 West Onondaga Street in Syracuse, Onondaga County, NY.

ASLF’s stated mission is to develop and promote innovative and practical ways to preserve

the environment, green the urban core, and protect water resources. In 1988, ASLF

commenced litigation against the Respondent in the federal district court for the northern

district of New York—case number 88-CV-066. The complaint alleged that Respondent

violated the CWA in the discharge of sewage into Onondaga Lake through various CSOs.

DEC intervened into the litigation.

12. DEC, ASLF and Respondent entered into a federal Amended Consent Judgment (“ACJ”),

effective January 20, 1998 (and modified May 1998, December 2006, April 2008 and

November 2009) concerning Respondent’s CSO abatement program. The ACJ governs the

Respondent’s obligations for design and construction of facilities required to abate CSOs and

preserve WQS. The CSO abatement program required by the ACJ is consistent with the

LTCP required under the EPA CSO Control Policy.

13. As part of the phased LTCP implementation schedule for Respondent, a CSO abatement

implementation schedule was set forth in the November 2009 modification of the ACJ (“ACJ

4th”). The ACJ 4th requires the Respondent to implement specified engineering upgrades in

accordance with stipulated milestone dates. Additionally, Respondent is required to submit

an annual report to DEC regarding all Permit CSOs, including, among other requirements,

the following:

a. Water quality monitoring in all CSO receiving waters,

b. Evaluation of compliance with CSO control implementation requirements,

c. Analysis of measures taken to reduce CSOs and address any WQS violations,

d. A stepped program to attain capture for treatment or elimination, within the

meaning of the CSO Control Policy, of no less than 95% by volume, on a system

wide annual average basis of the combined sewage generated during precipitation

events beginning no later than December 31, 2018.

14. Upon completion of the joint milestones set forth in the ACJ 4th and Permit, the ACJ 4th

provides the mechanism by which any of the litigants may petition the federal court for an

Order deeming that Respondent’s CSO related obligations in the ACJ 4th have been satisfied.

15. Pursuant to the terms of the ACJ 4th and Permit, Respondent has submitted and DEC has

approved all required reports through 2018. Those reports indicate that there are WQS

violations for, inter alia, bacteria in Harbor Brook, Onondaga Creek, and Ley Creek. These

violations occur during CSO and wet weather events and during dry weather periods.



16. Harbor Brook, Onondaga Creek and Ley Creek also experience phosphorus and ammonia

WQS violations, and are Impaired Waters under the Federal Clean Water Act Section 303

(d), per the Final 2016 NYS Section 303(d) List, July 2017.

17. Respondent’s annual reports have included calibrated CSS hydraulic modeling which

estimates 97.9% capture by volume, on a system-wide annual average basis, of the combined

sewage generated for the 1991 typical year rainfall as of December 31, 2019. The 2019

annual report was approved by DEC on October 21, 2020.

18. Respondent has completed ACJ 4th and Permit required engineering CSO upgrades by

stipulated milestone dates.

19. The Respondent submitted a draft LTCP to the Department on October 11, 2019, which the

Department reviewed and provided comments on August 28, 2020, and Respondent is

currently addressing changes and formulating responses to the comments. The Respondent

continues to advance select CSO abatement projects.  The draft LTCP contains descriptions

of CSO abatement projects in accordance with EPA’s CSO Control Policy.  In this regard,

the parties have continued discussions regarding such projects, the coordination of CSO

long-term control planning, the analysis of water quality data in CSO receiving waters,

achieving compliance with WQS, further guiding the development of an approvable LTCP

sufficient to meet WQS, and, if and when appropriate, development of a Use Attainability

Analysis (“UAA”) for CSO receiving waters consisting of Harbor Brook, Onondaga Creek,

and Ley Creek.

20. To that end, the Respondent and Department have entered into a Memorandum of

Understanding, dated October 15, 2020, (“MOU”) which establishes a general approach for

development of UAA reports for CSO receiving waters consisting of Harbor Brook,

Onondaga Creek, and Ley Creek (“UAA Reports”).  As set forth in the MOU, the general

approach by the parties shall be accomplished pursuant to the "Regulatory Framework for

State WQS Review."

Violations 

21. ECL § 17-0501 makes it unlawful for any person to discharge pollutants to the waters of the

State that cause or contribute to a violation of WQS. The Department determined that

Respondent’s CSO discharges and Respondent infrastructure have caused or contributed to

the violation of WQS for bacteria in the receiving waters in violation of ECL § 17-0501.

22. Pursuant to the Final 2016 NYS Section 303(d) List (July 2017), the Department determined

that Respondent’s CSO discharges have caused or contributed to violations of WQS in the

receiving waters in violation of ECL § 17 -0501.

23. Pursuant to ECL § 71-1929, a person who violates any of the provisions of, or who fails to

perform any duty imposed by, ECL Article 17 or the rules or regulations of the Department

promulgated pursuant thereto, or the terms of any permit or order issued there under, shall,

inter alia, be liable for a penalty not to exceed thirty-seven thousand, five-hundred dollars

($37,500) per day for each violation, and may also be enjoined from conducting such



activity. 

Respondent’s Consent to Administrative Order 

24. In order to address the violations noted above, Respondent agrees to enter into this Order on

Consent, which requires compliance with the Approved Interim CSO Corrective Measure

Plan (“Plan”), incorporated into and made enforceable under the terms of this Order on

Consent as Schedule A.

25. Compliance with this Order on Consent requires the Respondent to, without limitation:

a. pay a civil penalty;

b. comply with the Plan, which requires, among other things, the design and

implementation of additional CSO abatement projects to be completed over the

next five (5) years and preparation of an approvable disinfection report; and

c. submit an approvable revised LTCP, together with UAA Reports for Harbor

Brook, Onondaga Creek, and Ley Creek, within four (4) years and six (6) months

from the effective date of this Order in accordance with the parties Schedule of

Deliverables, incorporated into and made enforceable under the terms of this

Order on Consent as Schedule B.

26. Upon termination of this Order, Respondent’s CSO discharges shall not cause or contribute

to violations of applicable water quality requirements. Nevertheless, this does not preclude

the Respondent from seeking a variance from a WQBEL (6NYCRR 702.17) or a WQS

revision (40 CFR 131.10(g)), or preclude the County from operating CSOs in accordance

with a lawfully issued variance (6NYCRR 702.17), or in compliance with a lawfully revised

water quality standard.

27. In settlement of the above-stated violations, the Department and Respondent have consented

to the execution of this Order on Consent as evidenced by the signature of their

representatives, requiring Respondent to comply with all the terms, provisions and conditions

of this Order on Consent, without trial or adjudication of any issues of fact or law.

28. This Order on Consent shall be effective upon ENTRY WITH NOTICE of a federal decree

dismissing, terminating or discontinuing the federal action in the federal district court for the

northern district of New York (Case No. 88-CV-066).

THEREFORE, having considered this matter, and the Respondent having been duly 

advised, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

I. EFFECT ON PREVIOUS ORDERS

The requirements set forth in this Order on Consent are in addition to, and do not affect 

any requirements set forth in, any Orders on Consent executed between the Department 

and the Respondent prior to the effective date of this Order on Consent. 

II. CIVIL PENALTY



a. With respect to the violations set forth above, the Respondent is hereby assessed  a

civil penalty in the amount of One Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) which

shall be payable to the Department within thirty (30) days.

b. The Payable penalty of One Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) shall be paid

directly to the NYS DEC, Division of Management and Budget Services, 625

Broadway, Albany, New York 12201 according to the attached invoice.

III. IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERIM CSO CORRECTIVE MEASURE PLAN

Upon the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall comply with the Plan and fund, 

plan, design, and implement the limited Respondent owned/managed/funded CSO 

abatement projects set forth therein. As further detailed in the Plan, Respondent has 

committed to preparing and submitting a disinfection report.  All work under the Plan, 

unless specific elsewhere, shall be completed within five (5) years of the effective date of 

this Order. 

IV. COMPLIANCE WITH THE SCHEDULE OF DELIVERABLES

Upon the effective date of this Order, the Parties shall comply with their respective 

obligations as set forth in the Schedule of Deliverables. As further detailed in the 

Schedule of Deliverables, within four (4) years and six (6) months of the effective date of 

this Order, Respondent shall submit an approvable revised LTCP. Concurrent therewith, 

the County will submit UAA Reports pursuant to 40 CFR § 131.10(g) for the segments of 

Harbor Brook, Onondaga Creek, and Ley Creek impacted by CSOs and areas impacted 

downstream of such CSO discharges.  

V. WRITTEN SUBMITTALS TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANS, REPORTS AND

OTHER DELIVERABLES

a. In order to be deemed in compliance with this Order, all submittals of written work

plans, reports and other deliverables (“deliverables”) required under this Order on

Consent shall be:

i. (i) materially complete, (ii) submitted by the deadline set forth, and (iii) under

the signature and seal of a professional engineer currently licensed to practice

in New York State unless otherwise specifically agreed to in writing, which

agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld;

ii. in accordance with (i) the specified project descriptions and schedules set

forth herein, (ii) the CWA and its relevant and applicable regulations, (iii) the

CSO Control Policy as adopted at 33 U.S.C. §1342(q)(1) (and EPA guidance

documents in Paragraph 7 herein), (iv) the ECL and its relevant and applicable

regulations in 6 NYCRR Parts 750 and 703, and (v) the Respondent’s SPDES

Permit; and, if the deliverable pertains to an initial submittal that involves only

“minimal revision” in response to Department comments, then the initial

submittal shall be “approvable” in accordance with 6 NYCRR Part 750-1.2(8).



b. After review of any deliverable, the Department may in writing: i) approve the

submittal or ii) provide comments to be resolved, explained and/or addressed in a

single revised submittal that shall warrant final approval by the Department under the

terms of this Order on Consent and pursuant to the requirements of the CWA and its

applicable regulations, the CSO Control Policy as adopted at 33 U.S.C. §1342(q)(1)

and the ECL and its applicable regulations in 6 NYCRR Parts 750 and 703.

i. If the submittal is approved, it will thereby be incorporated into and made an

enforceable part of this Order on Consent. Respondent shall take all actions

required by the operative terms of the deliverable, in accordance with the

schedules and requirements therein, as approved. Any violation of the

operative terms of the approved submission shall be a violation of the terms of

this Order on Consent by Respondent.

ii. If the submittal is the subject of a comment letter from the Department,

Respondent shall respond to all comments and correct all deficiencies in the

submittal in accordance with the Department’s comments and resubmit the

deliverable for final approval, within a timeframe determined by the

Department. If the resubmittal is approved, the approved submittal shall be

incorporated and made an enforceable part of this Order, and Respondent shall

proceed, as set forth in the preceding Subparagraph V.b.i herein.

iii. If a re-submitted deliverable is disapproved in whole or in part, (i) the

Respondent shall be in violation of this Order on Consent, (ii) the Department

may again demand that Respondent correct any deficiencies in accordance

with this Subparagraph, and (iii) the disapproved resubmittal shall be subject

to the accrual of and the Department’s right to seek stipulated penalties as

provided in Paragraph IX herein.

c. Upon approval by the Department, Respondent shall implement and take all actions

required by the deliverables.

VI. NOTIFICATION OF NON-COMPLIANCE

If Respondent fails to comply with any requirement of this Order on Consent, including 

the Plan and Schedule of Deliverables, Respondent shall notify the Department of such 

failure and the likely duration of the period of noncompliance in writing within ten (10) 

working days of the day Respondent first becomes aware of the noncompliance, with an 

explanation of the violation’s likely cause and of the remedial steps taken, and/or to be 

taken, to prevent or minimize it (“Notification of Non-compliance”). If the cause of the 

noncompliance cannot be fully explained at the time the report is due, Respondent shall 

include a statement to that effect in the report. Respondent shall immediately investigate 

to determine the cause of the noncompliance and then shall submit an amendment to the 

report, including a full explanation of the cause of the noncompliance, within thirty (30) 

days of the day Respondent becomes aware of the cause of the noncompliance. A 

Notification of Non-compliance shall not be required in the event of a delay as set forth 



in Paragraph VII or a force majeure event as defined in Paragraph XII, in which case 

Respondent shall comply with the applicable force majeure notice provisions set forth in 

Paragraph XII(b). 

VII. PERMITS AND APPROVALS

Where any compliance obligation under this Order on Consent requires Respondent to 

obtain federal, state, or local permits or approvals, or triggers review under the State 

Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”), Respondent shall submit timely and 

complete applications, or timely perform the SEQRA review, and take all other actions 

necessary to obtain all such permits or approvals or to ensure compliance with SEQRA. 

Respondent may seek relief under the provisions of Paragraph XII for any delay in the 

performance of any such obligation resulting from a failure to obtain, or a delay in 

obtaining, any permit or approval or the completion of a SEQRA review required to 

fulfill such obligation, including any delay in obtaining EPA approval of UAA Reports, if 

Respondent has submitted timely and complete applications and have taken all other 

actions required by applicable law to obtain all such permits or approvals and to ensure 

compliance with SEQRA. The reporting requirements of this Order on Consent do not 

relieve Respondent of any reporting obligations required by the CWA or its 

implementing regulations, or by any other federal, state, or local law, regulation, permit, 

or requirement, including Respondent’s Permit. In accordance with the MOU and 

Schedule of Deliverables, the Department agrees to cooperate and coordinate with 

Respondent in the development of UAA Reports and in requesting EPA approval of such 

UAA Reports. 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS

a. All correspondence, plans, reports, and any other written deliverables submitted to the

Department under the terms and requirements of this Order on Consent shall be sent

to the following contacts or their successors at the Department:

Original to: 

Regional Water Engineer 

NYSDEC 

615 Erie Blvd West 

Syracuse, NY 13204 

With one copy to: 

Regional Engineer 

NYSDEC 

615 Erie Blvd West 

Syracuse, NY 13204 

Director – Bureau of Water 

Compliance 

NYSDEC 

625 Broadway, 4
th

 Floor

Albany, NY 12233-3506 



and 

Regional Attorney, Office of General Counsel 

NYSDEC 

615 Erie Blvd West 

Syracuse, NY 13204 

Copies of all correspondence from the Department to Respondent required under this 

Order on Consent shall be provided to the following or their successors: 

Original to: 

Commissioner 

OCDWEP 

650 Hiawatha Blvd West 

Syracuse, NY 13204 

With one copy to: 

Onondaga County Law Department 

421 Montgomery Street, 10th Fl. 

Syracuse, NY 13202 

b. Any party may change its designee(s) under this Paragraph upon written notice to the

other parties.

c. Notices and submissions provided pursuant to this Paragraph shall be deemed

effective upon receipt, unless otherwise provided in this Order on Consent or by

mutual agreement of the Parties in writing.

d. Each notice, report or submission submitted by Respondent under this Order on

Consent shall be signed by an official of Respondent and include the following

certification:

i. I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am

familiar with the information submitted in this document and

all attachments and that this document and its attachments

were prepared under my direction or supervision in a manner

designed to ensure that qualified and knowledgeable

personnel properly gather and present the information

contained therein. I further certify, based on my inquiry of

those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the

information, that I believe that the information is true,

accurate and complete. I am aware that there are significant

penalties for submitting false information, including the

possibility of fines and imprisonment.

IX. STIPULATED PENALTIES



a. In the event Respondent fails to satisfy any Plan deliverables or other deadline set

forth in this Order on Consent, or violates any term of this Order on Consent, the

Department shall be entitled to judgment against Respondent. Respondent hereby

consents to the entry of judgment against it in New York State Supreme Court, for a

stipulated penalty encompassing each day of such violation of this Order. Said

stipulated penalties shall be in the following amounts:

PERIOD OF NON-COMPLIANCE PENALTY PER DAY 

i. 1st Day through 30th Day $ 500/day 

ii. 31st Day through 60th Day $ 1,000/day 

iii. Each Day beyond the 60th Day $ 1,500/day 

b. Any stipulated penalty judgment shall become due and payable, and may be entered,

upon ten (10) calendar days’ notice to Respondent.

c. These stipulated penalties shall be in addition to the civil penalty already   assessed by

the Department as set forth in Paragraph II, above.

d. All stipulated penalties shall begin to accrue on the day after the performance is due

or on the day a violation occurs, whichever is applicable, and shall continue to accrue

until performance is satisfactorily completed or until the violation ceases. Nothing

herein shall prevent the simultaneous accrual of separate penalties for separate

violations of this Order on Consent, except that when two or more violations are

based upon the same noncompliance, the higher stipulated penalty shall apply.

e. Payment of Stipulated Penalties to the Department.

i. Payment. Stipulated penalties payable to the Department shall be paid by

certified or cashier’s check in the amount due, payable to the NYS DEC,

Division of Management and Budget Services, 625 Broadway, Albany, New

York 12201. The DEC case number appearing on the first page of this Order

on Consent shall be endorsed on the face of the check.

ii. Late Payment. Should Respondent fail to pay stipulated penalties and accrued

interest payable to the Department in accordance with the terms of this Order

on Consent, the Department shall be entitled to collect interest and late

payment costs and fees, together with the costs (including attorneys’ fees)

incurred in any action necessary to collect any such stipulated penalties,

interest, or late payment costs or fees.

iii. Respondent’s payment of stipulated penalties under this Paragraph shall be in

addition to any other rights or remedies available to the Department by reason

of Respondent’s failure to comply with any requirement of this Order on

Consent or applicable law.

X. DEFAULT



a. The failure of Respondent to comply fully and/or in a timely fashion with any

provision of this Order on Consent shall constitute a default and a failure to perform

an obligation under this Order and under the ECL by the Respondent, and shall

constitute sufficient grounds for revocation pursuant to 6 NYCRR § 621.13 of any

permit, license, certification or approval issued to the Respondent by the Department

unless said permit, license, certification or approval is completely unrelated to the

facilities, requirements and obligations addressed in this Order on Consent.

b. The penalties assessed in this Order, set forth in Paragraph II or Paragraph IX, if any,

constitute a debt owed to the State of New York. Failure to pay the assessed penalty,

or any part thereof, in accordance with the schedule contained in this Order on

Consent may result in referral to the New York State Attorney General for collection

of the entire amount owed (including the assessment of interest and a charge to cover

the cost of collecting the debt) or referral to the New York State Department of

Taxation and Finance, which may offset by the unpaid penalty amount any monies

that may be owed to Respondent by the State of New York.

XI. BINDING EFFECT

a. This Order shall be deemed to bind according to its terms Respondent, its respective

officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, successors and assigns, and all

persons, firms and corporations acting under or for Respondent, including, without

limitation, any subsequent operator of the facilities that are the   subject of the Permit

(“permitted facilities”), who may carry on activities now conducted by the

Respondent at the permitted facilities, and any successor in title to the respective

permitted facilities or to any interest therein.

b. Respondent shall provide a copy of this Order on Consent (including any submissions

incorporated herein) to any contractor or subcontractor hired to perform work

required under this Order on Consent and shall require compliance with this Order on

Consent as a term of any contract for performance of work under this Order on

Consent. Respondent shall nonetheless be responsible for ensuring that all work

performed under this Order on Consent is in compliance with the terms of this Order.

XII. FORCE MAJEURE

a. Respondent shall not be in default of the provisions of this Order on Consent if its

non-compliance is directly attributable to an Act of God, war, insurrection, terrorism,

strike, judicial injunction, catastrophic condition, or other circumstance that is

entirely beyond its control and which Respondent’s due diligence could not prevent

(“force majeure”). If such a force majeure event occurs, Respondent shall be entitled

to an extension of the applicable Schedule of Deliverables and/or Plan deadlines(s),

limited to the period of time caused by such event that placed compliance with a

provision of this Order beyond Respondent’s control.

b. As a condition precedent to obtaining a schedule extension under this provision,

Respondent shall notify the Department in writing that a force majeure event has



occurred, no later than fourteen (14) days after the date Respondent knew or should 

have known of the occurrence of any force majeure event. Respondent shall include 

in such notice the measures taken and to be taken by the Respondent to avoid or 

mitigate the delay, and may request an extension or modification of the applicable 

deadline(s) under this Order equal to the period of delay directly attributable to the 

force majeure event. Failure to give such notice within such fourteen-day period 

constitutes a waiver of any claim that that a delay is not subject to penalties. 

c. Whenever a deadline is missed, pursuant to a force majeure event or otherwise, the

Respondent shall exercise their best efforts to recoup all lost time, including where

appropriate, the payment of extraordinary expenses for overtime, double shifts, or

additional contractors or consultants, or alternative methods to the extent allowable

under local law.

d. If the Department reasonably determines that no force majeure event occurred and a

stipulated penalty is due, Respondent shall promptly pay the stipulated penalty

pursuant to Paragraph IX in this Order on Consent plus interest from the date of the

missed deadline.

e. Regardless of any force majeure event asserted under this Paragraph, nothing set forth

herein relieves Respondent of its obligation to provide and submit or issue any other

notices and reports as required by law, its Permit, or this Order on Consent.

f. Respondent shall have the burden of proving that its respective non-compliance with

this Order, if any, is directly attributable to a force majeure event, and that its

compliance with this Paragraph XII constitutes a defense to compliance with this

Order on Consent.

XIII. ACCESS

For the purpose of ensuring compliance with this Order on Consent, Respondent shall 

allow duly authorized Department representatives access to its permitted facilities and 

any appurtenances involved herein, without prior notice, to enable Department 

representatives to inspect and determine the status of the Respondent’s compliance with 

this Order on Consent. 

XIV. EFFECT OF SETTLEMENT

a. This Order on Consent is not a permit, or a modification of any permit, under any

federal, State, or local laws or regulations. Respondent is responsible for achieving

and maintaining complete compliance with all applicable federal, State, and local

laws, regulations, and permits (including its Permit), and Respondent’s compliance

with this Order on Consent shall be no defense to any action commenced pursuant to

any such laws, regulations, or permits, except as set forth herein. The Department

does not, by its consent to the entry of this Order on Consent, warrant or aver in any

manner that Respondent’s compliance with any aspect of this Order on Consent will

result in compliance with provisions of the CWA, or with any other provisions of



federal, State, or local laws, regulations, or permits, including Respondent’s SPDES 

permits. 

b. This Order on Consent does not limit or affect the rights of Respondent or of the

United States or the State against any third parties, not party to this Order on Consent,

nor does it limit the rights of third parties, not party to this Order on Consent, against

Respondent, except as otherwise provided by law.

c. This Order on Consent shall not be construed to create rights in, or grant any cause of

action to, any third party not party to this Order on Consent.

XV. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

In the event of a dispute between the Department and Respondent with respect to the 

performance under this Order on Consent, the parties shall make reasonable efforts over 

the course of no more than 45 days to meet and confer in an effort to resolve such 

dispute. Such efforts to meet and confer are to be initiated by Respondent in writing 

pursuant to Paragraph VIII (Communications). Review under New York Civil Practice 

Law and Rules Article 78 shall be available for all final agency actions under this Order 

on Consent. Should Respondent invoke Dispute Resolution under this Paragraph, 

stipulated penalties shall nonetheless continue to accrue and shall be payable either (i) not 

more than ten days after the informal resolution of the dispute in the Department’s favor 

within the designated 45-day period or (ii) within ten days of the issuance of a civil order 

or judgment unless and to the extent that a civil order or judgment is issued in 

Respondent’s favor. 

XVI. MODIFICATION

If Respondent desires that any of the provisions, terms or conditions of this Order on 

Consent be changed, it shall make timely written application setting forth the grounds for 

the relief sought to the Department pursuant to Paragraph VIII. Grounds for modification 

may include, without limitation, EPA’s failure to approve submitted UAA Reports. Any 

change to this Order on Consent must be in writing and signed by Respondent and the 

Commissioner or the Commissioner’s designee. 

XVII. TERMINATION AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

a. This Order on Consent shall be deemed completely satisfied and shall terminate as

follows: the Respondent has paid the civil penalty set forth in Paragraph II above and

stipulated penalties, if any, due and owing under this Order on Consent have been

paid; and one of the following occurs:

i. Respondent demonstrates that CSOs are not causing or contributing to a

violation of the applicable water quality standards in the CSO receiving

waters for one full year; or

ii. CSO discharges are not violating WQS by reason of WQS revisions, variance

or reclassification of the receiving waters;  or

iii. Five (5) years after the effective date of this Order, or any extension thereto



required to comply with Paragraph 25 herein and in accordance with 

Paragraphs VI, VII and/or XII, this Order on Consent is revised, amended, 

replaced or extended by a subsequent Order on Consent. 

b. Nothing herein shall be construed as a release or waiver by the Department of its

rights to: (1) seek injunctive relief to abate any violation of law or this Order on

Consent; (2) seek stipulated penalties and entry of judgment as provided in Paragraph

IX of this Order; (3) seek penalties and other relief for any violations not set forth in

this Order on Consent, including its Appendices; (4) re-allege the violations listed in

this Order on Consent to obtain injunctive relief or damages in support of natural

resource damage claims; (5) seek to modify, suspend, or revoke any Department-

issued permit; (6) seek any applicable criminal sanctions against Respondent or any

other party; or (7) seek issuance by the Commissioner or his duly authorized

representative of a summary abatement order against Respondent. In addition, the

Department reserves all such rights as it has to require Respondent to take any

additional measures required to protect human health or the environment.

XVIII. SIGNATORIES TO ORDER

Each undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he or she is fully authorized 

to enter into the terms and conditions of this Order on Consent and to execute and legally 

bind the Party he or she represents to this document. This Order on Consent may be 

signed in counterparts, and such counterpart signature pages shall be given full force and 

effect. 

XIX. INDEMNIFICATION

Respondent indemnifies and holds harmless New York State, the Department, and any of 

its employees, contractors or representatives for any and all claims, actions, suits, 

damages, and costs of every name and description, arising out of or resulting from the 

fulfillment or attempted fulfillment of the provisions of this Order on Consent by 

Respondent, its directors, officers, employees, servants, agents, successors or assigns, to 

the extent that any such claims, actions, suits, damages, and costs are not caused by 

intentional or negligent acts of New York State, the Department or any of their 

employees or contractors. 

XX. ENTIRE ORDER

This Order on Consent and attachments, if any, constitute the final, complete, and 

exclusive agreement and understanding among the Parties with respect to the settlement 

embodied in the Order on Consent, and supersede all prior agreements and 

understandings, whether oral or written. Unless expressly incorporated herein, no other 

document, representation, inducement, agreement, understanding, or promise constitutes 

any part of this Order on Consent or the settlement it represents, nor shall it be used in 

construing the terms of this Order on Consent. 

XXI. EFFECTIVE DATE



Once signed by the DEC Commissioner or the Commissioner’s designee, the effective 

date of this Order is the date of ENTRY WITH NOTICE of a federal decree dismissing, 

terminating, or discontinuing the federal action in federal district court for the northern 

district of New York (Case No. 88-CV-066). 

DATED: _________________, 2021 

SYRACUSE, NEW YORK  

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 

By:  _______________________ 

Name: _____________________ 

Title: ______________________ 



CONSENT BY RESPONDENT 

Respondent hereby consents to the issuance and entry of the foregoing Order without further 

notice, waives its right to a hearing herein as provided by law, and agrees to be bound by the terms, 

conditions and provisions contained herein. The undersigned represents and affirms that they have the 

legal authority to bind Respondent to the terms and conditions of this Order. 

COUNTY OF ONONDAGA 

By: 

Name:   J. Ryan McMahon, II 

Title:  County Executive 

Date:    

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) ss: 

COUNTY OF ONONDAGA ) 

On the ___day of  ___________, in the year 2021, before me, the undersigned, personally 

appeared J. Ryan McMahon, II., personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 

evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 

me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her capacity as shown in the instrument, and that by 

his/her signature on the instrument, the individual, or the person upon behalf of which the individual 

acted, executed the instrument. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 



Schedule A: 

Interim CSO Corrective Measure Plan 

Plan: Respondent shall, within 6 months of the effective date of this Order (“EDO”), submit an 

Interim CSO Corrective Measures Plan (“Plan”) that shall be implemented for the duration of the 

Order on Consent until the Order on Consent has been terminated.  The Plan shall include the 

following: 

1) Limited CSO Abatement Projects:  List of CSO Abatement Projects the Respondent has

currently committed to funding or constructing/implementing over the five (5) year

period of the Order.

2) Focused Post-Construction Compliance Monitoring Program (PCCM):  Where

implemented, the focused PCCM shall be consistent with the CSO Control Policy and

EPA Guidance to support Use Attainability Analyses (UAAs) for fecal coliform, track

water quality improvements, and support the maintenance of the Respondent’s

stormwater management model (“SWMM”).  DEC shall review and approve the focused

PCCM.

3) CSO Metering Program:  The Respondent shall submit an annual CSO Metering Program

to support the continued ongoing calibration and maintenance of the Respondent’s

stormwater management model (“SWMM”).  The CSO metering program is subject to

DEC review and approval. The Respondent shall update its SWMM on an annual basis to

represent projects or improvements completed in the previous calendar year.  The

Respondent shall propose a SWMM re-calibration plan, as needed, when projects or other

system improvements have occurred that necessitate re-calibration of the SWMM.

Annual Plan Reporting:  Commencing upon the EDO, on or before April 1 of every year for five 

(5) years Respondent shall submit to the Department a detailed written summary as follows:

1) Status of any Respondent owned/managed/funded CSO Abatement Projects that have

been implemented or are in planning stages over the past year.

2) Status of any non-Respondent owned/managed/funded “Opportunistic” projects that have

been implemented or are in planning stages over the past year, including the potential

New York State I-81 improvement project.

3) Summary of the metering data and review of any discrepancies between the Respondent’s

SWMM and the metered data obtained over the past year, and an update and

recalibration, in accordance with the SWMM re-calibration plan, of Respondent’s

SWMM.

4) Summary of any PCCM data (if implemented) and determination of WQ improvements

resulting from implementation of CSO Abatement Projects.

5) Such reports shall be sent to the Department at the addresses set forth in Paragraph VIII

of this Order.

Disinfection Report:  Within two (2) years of the EDO, Respondent shall prepare and submit to 

the Department an approvable report consolidating and summarizing available data pertaining to 

CSO disinfection technologies implemented by Respondent and analyzing the disinfection 

program implemented at Respondent’s Midland Avenue Regional Treatment Facility (“RTF”). 



The Report shall provide an analysis of the water quality benefits from disinfection (e.g., fecal 

coliform reduction and attainment of water quality standards) in the receiving waters for the 

existing Midland Avenue RTF utilizing existing collected ambient and effluent data, as well as 

engineering, capital, and operation and maintenance costs associated with the disinfection 

program implemented thereat. The report shall document how the existing disinfection data set 

from the Midland Avenue RTF will be utilized in performing and analyzing CSO disinfection 

under the separate UAA Reports and any additional disinfection considerations required under an 

approvable LTCP 



Schedule B: 

Schedule of Deliverables 

Pursuant to this Order on Consent, Respondent and the Department shall collectively, to 

the maximum extent practicable, diligently progress submissions, reviews, comments, revisions 

and approvals of the County’s revised LTCP and any UAA Reports in accordance with the 

timeline and deadlines set forth below. It is understood that such timeline and deadlines are 

derived from best, reasonable, estimates, and that deadlines may be extended pursuant to 

Paragraphs VI, VII and XII of this Order. 

1) Water Quality Data Review:

The Department and Respondent shall initiate the process of indexing existing data and 

arranging such in a usable format, reviewing existing data for QA/QC, and analyzing such data. 

Within one (1) year of the effective date of this Order (“EDO”), the Department will complete its 

review of existing and relevant information, data, analyses and modeling pertaining to the 

physical, chemical, biological and economic qualities of Onondaga Lake, its tributaries, environs 

and surroundings (“existing data”).  The Department and Respondent shall cooperate and 

coordinate with respect to the review and arranging/formatting of existing data.   

With respect to existing data and the potential need for additional data, the Parties 

acknowledge the value of existing data and the Department agrees to Respondent’s use of such 

existing data for Use Attainability Analysis (UAA) Report development as per the CSO Control 

Policy and EPA guidance.  Notwithstanding the existing data, the Parties also acknowledge that 

whenever it reasonably appears, after a review of all such existing data, that additional data is 

necessary to measure pollutants in CSOs that cause or contribute to water quality criteria 

excursions or to identify sources beyond CSO discharges that may be contributing to non-

attainment, additional tributary data shall be collected at the upstream and downstream 

boundaries of the tributaries where CSOs occur. However, Respondent is not responsible for 

control or monitoring of other third party sources of impairment. Further, any determination by 

the Department as to the reasonable need for additional data collection, sampling and/or 

monitoring shall wait until the review of all such existing data to determine any data gaps and/or 

the needs of UAA Reports are complete. 

Water sample collection sites shall be at the same locations as previously approved by the 

Department for the County’s Ambient Monitoring Program (AMP), to wit: Onondaga Creek – 

Dorwin Ave. (upstream of CSOs) and Kirkpatrick Street (downstream of CSOs); Harbor Brook – 

Velasko Rd. (upstream of CSOs) and Hiawatha Blvd. (downstream of CSOs); and Ley Creek – 

Thompson Rd. (upstream of CSOs) and Park St. (downstream of CSOs). 

2) Additional Water Quality Data:

If the Department deems it necessary after a review of existing data for Respondent to 

perform additional data collection/monitoring, Respondent will begin collecting such data two 

(2) years after the EDO and complete such activities within four (4) years of the EDO.



3) Revised LTCP and UAA Reports:

Within four (4) years and six (6) months of the EDO, Respondent shall submit a revised 

LTCP, together with UAA Reports, to the Department for review and approval. The Department 

shall review and the Respondent shall further revise, if necessary, the LTCP and UAA Reports 

and shall do so expeditiously, to the maximum extent feasible, so as to have an approved LTCP 

and UAA Reports within five (5) years of the EDO. Thereafter, and on or prior to the end of the 

fifth (5th) year from the EDO, UAA Reports will be sent forthwith to EPA for approval. Upon 

EPA approval of UAA Reports, the County shall petition the Department for revision of 

applicable WQS. 

UAA Reports will be limited to the segments of Harbor Brook, Onondaga Creek and Ley 

Creek impacted by CSOs and areas impacted downstream of CSO discharges; recreational use 

WQS, namely total and fecal coliforms parameters as listed in 6 NYCRR 703.4; and, any other 

waterbody uses impacted by CSOs. 

4) Disinfection Report:

Within two (2) years of the EDO, Respondent shall, in accordance with Schedule A to 

this Order, submit to the Department an approvable disinfection report.  

5) Plan Deliverables:

Within six (6) months of the EDO, Respondent shall, in accordance with Schedule A to 

this Order, submit to the Department: (1) a list of limited CSO Abatement Projects to be funded 

or implemented by Respondent over the term of this Order; (2) an approvable focused PCCM; 

and (3) an approvable annual CSO Metering Program plan. 

6) Annual Plan Reporting: Commencing upon the EDO, on or before April 1 of every year for

five (5) years Respondent shall submit to the Department an annual report prepared in

accordance with Schedule A to this Order.



IT – NIBRS    BMY    dak  1.25.2021 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation duly adopted 
by the County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd day of March 2021. 

 
Clerk, County Legislature 
 

March 2, 2021 
 
Motion Made By Mr. Holmquist RESOLUTION NO. 29 
 
 

AMENDING THE 2021 COUNTY BUDGET TO MAKE FUNDING AVAILABLE FOR USE IN 
CONNECTION WITH A GRANT FROM THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

BUREAU OF JUSTICE STATISTICS, AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has received supplemental funding from the U.S. Department of Justice, 
Office of Justice Programs Bureau of Justice Statistics’ (BJS) National Incident Based Reporting System 
(NIBRS) Grant Program, and it is necessary to amend the budget to make such funds available for use; 
now, therefore be it 
 
 RESOLVED, that the County Executive is authorized to execute agreements and such other 
documents as may reasonably be necessary to implement the intent of this resolution; and, be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the 2021 County Budget is amended as follows: 
 
REVENUES: 
In Admin Unit 2700000000 
Information Technology 
Speed Type #160044 
In Project 725005 NIBRS Compliance 
In Acct 590022 State Aid-Public Safety $336,000 
 
APPROPRIATIONS: 
In Admin Unit 2700000000 
Information Technology 
Speed Type #160044 
In Project 725005 NIBRS Compliance $336,000 
 
 
ADOPTED 3.2.21 
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JCOC Crumbie_Scammell    DLL    yv    dak  8.24.2020 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation duly 
adopted by the County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd day of March 
2021. 

 
   

 

March 2, 2021 
 
Motion Made By Mr. Knapp and Mr. Ryan RESOLUTION NO. 30 
 
 

CONFIRMING APPOINTMENTS TO THE ONONDAGA COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER 
OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Local Law No. 4 - 2015, David H. Knapp, Chairman of the Onondaga 
County Legislature, has duly appointed the individuals listed below to serve as members of the Onondaga 
County Justice Center Oversight Committee, subject to the confirmation of this Legislature: 
 
APPOINTMENTS: TERM EXPIRES: 
Kerry-Ann Crumbie December 31, 2022 
4750 Woodard Way 
Liverpool, New York 13088 
 
Gregory Scammell December 31, 2023 
2398 Markland Road 
LaFayette, New York 13084 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of this Legislature to confirm such appointments; now, therefore be it 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Onondaga County Legislature does hereby confirm such appointments of the 
above named individuals, effective immediately. 
 
 
ADOPTED 3.2.21 
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 12. KNAPP    

  TOTAL: 17 0  
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Kaminski Appt 2021    jmm   yv 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation duly adopted by the 
County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd day of March 2021. 

 
Clerk, County Legislature 
 

March 2, 2021                                          WAIVER  
 
Motion Made By Mr. Knapp RESOLUTION NO. 31 
 
 

CONFIRMING APPOINTMENT OF DEBORAH A. KAMINSKI AS ASSISTANT CLERK OF THE 
ONONDAGA COUNTY LEGISLATURE 

 
 RESOLVED, that the following person is hereby appointed Assistant Clerk of the Onondaga 
County Legislature: 
 

DEBORAH A. KAMINSKI 
207 Center Street, Syracuse, NY  13209 

 
 

ADOPTED 3.2.21 
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Mr. May requested a waiver 
to present the following 

resolution. 
 

There was no objection, and 
the waiver was allowed. 
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Mem_Canton Street Bridge    yv    dak  2.25.2021 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of the legislation duly 
adopted by the County Legislature of Onondaga County on the 2nd day of March 
2021. 

 
   

 

March 2, 2021                                                WAIVER 
 
Motion Made By Mr. Bush                  RESOLUTION NO. 32 
 
 

MEMORIALIZING RESOLUTION OPPOSING THE REMOVAL OF THE CANTON STREET 
BRIDGE, TOWN OF VAN BUREN, OVER THE NEW YORK STATE THRUWAY 

 
WHEREAS, the concept for the New York State Thruway began in the 1940s and the New York 

State Thruway opened the Central New York Section of the Thruway in 1954; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the planners, engineers and designers of the Thruway recognized the need for 
maintaining “connectivity” for communities located along the Thruway corridor, for social, economic, 
agricultural, industrial, educational and future growth and expansion; and constructed the Canton Street 
Thruway overpass bridge to achieve and sustain these needs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Canton Street Bridge has played an integral role in the maintenance and expansion 
of this “connectivity” since the 1950s; and the residents, commercial, educational and industrial users in 
the immediate community, along with fire and emergency services agencies, have become totally dependent 
on this crossover bridge to provide public safety services to the community and the users of the New York 
State Thruway; and 
 

WHEREAS, the New York State Thruway Authority has now proposed to remove the Canton 
Street Bridge; now, therefore be it 
 

RESOLVED, that the Onondaga County Legislature strongly opposes the removal of the Canton 
Street Bridge and considers the proposed removal project to be environmentally, socially and economically 
short-sighted, as well as, detrimental to public safety and established vehicle and pedestrian traffic for the 
walking residents, students and school buses; and, be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Onondaga County Legislature also finds the proposed removal of the Canton 
Street Bridge to negatively impact commercial and industrial businesses, as well as property values within 
the hamlet of Warners, Towns of Camillus and Van Buren; and, be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Onondaga County Legislature strongly encourages the Thruway Authority 
to consider a replacement or rehabilitation project for the Canton Street Bridge, which the Onondaga 
County Legislature will fully support; and, be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Honorable Mathew J. Driscoll, Executive 
Director of the New York State Thruway Authority, Joanne M. Mahoney, Chair Thruway Board of 
Directors, Governor Andrew Cuomo, Congressman John Katko, State Senator John Mannion, 
Assemblyman William B. Magnarelli, and Assemblyman John Lemondes. 

 
 

ADOPTED 3.2.21 
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Mr. Bush requested a waiver 
to present the following 

resolution. 
 

There was no objection, and 
the waiver was allowed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting was adjourned  
at 1:36 p.m. 
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